
 
 

1200 Wilmette Avenue 
Wilmette, IL  60091 

 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (847) 853-7550 
DEPARTMENT Fax (847) 853-7701 

 TDD (847) 853-7634 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
of the  

APPEARANCE REVIEW COMMISSION 
OF THE VILLAGE OF WILMETTE 

 
Monday, August 7, 2017 at 7:30 P.M. 

Second Floor Training Room 

AGENDA 
 
I. Call to Order 

II. Approval of Minutes 

Minutes of the Appearance Review Commission of July 10, 2017 

III. Continuances 

 2017-AR-10, 808 Linden Avenue, St. Francis Xavier Parish, Appearance 
Review Certificate and Variation 

IV. Consent Agenda 

 2017-AR-19, 1201 Green Bay Road, Heart Certified Auto Care, Wall Sign 
 2017-AR-21, 350 Ridge Road, Hyun, Tenant Directory Sign 
 2017-AR-22, 1222 Washington Court, Share Wilmette, Awning Sign 

V. Case 

 2017-AR-17, 911 Ridge Road, Treasure Island, Certificate 
 2017-AR-24, 1135 Wilmette Avenue, Gates Manor, Preliminary Review 
 2016-AR-18, 601 Green Bay Road, Mona Lisa Stone & Tile, Certificate 

VI. Special Zoning Committee 

 2017-SZC-04, 3207 Lake Avenue, Westlake Plaza, Text Amendment 

VII. Public Comment 

VIII. Adjournment 

William Bradford, Chair 

 
IF YOU ARE A PERSON WITH A DISABILITY AND NEED SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE 

 IN AND/OR ATTEND A VILLAGE OF WILMETTE PUBLIC MEETING, PLEASE NOTIFY THE VILLAGE  
MANAGER’S OFFICE AT (847) 853-7509 OR TDD  (847) 853-7634 AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. 



   Draft 8/7/2017 
  

 1

 
V I L L A G E   O F   W I L M E T T E 

1200 Wilmette Avenue 
WILMETTE, ILLINOIS 60091-0040 

 
MEETING MINUTES  

 
APPEARANCE REVIEW COMMISSION 

 
MONDAY, JULY 10, 2017  

7:30 P.M. 
COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTER 

3000 GLENVIEW ROAD 
 
 
Members Present: William Bradford, Chairman 

Nada Andric 
Daniel Elkins  
Carrie Woleben-Meade    
 

Members Absent:  Mason Miller 
   Craig Phillips 
 
Guests: None 
 
Staff Present:  Lucas Sivertsen, Business Development Coordinator 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Chairman Bradford called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES; APPEARANCE REVIEW COMMISSION MEETING 

OF JUNE 5, 2017. 
 
Mr. Elkins moved to approve the June 5, 2017 meeting minutes as submitted.  The motion 
was seconded by Ms. Andric.  Voting yes:  Chairman Bradford and Commissioners Andric, 
Elkins, Woleben-Meade.  Voting no: none.  The motion carried. 
 
 
 
 



   Draft 8/7/2017 
  

 2

III. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mr. Elkins moved to grant an Appearance Review Certificate for Case 2017-AR-18, 344 
Ridge Road, Friendly Nails, Wall Sign.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Woleben-
Meade.  Voting yes:  Chairman Bradford and Commissioners Andric, Elkins, Woleben-
Meade.  Voting no: none.  The motion carried. 
 
 

IV. CASES 
 
2017-AR-10 808 Linden Avenue 
St. Francis Xavier Appearance Review Certificate 
 
Ms. Woleben-Meade moved to continue Case 2017-AR-10, 808 Linden Avenue, St. 
Francis Xavier, to the August 7, 2017 meeting.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Elkins.  
Voting yes:  Chairman Bradford and Commissioners Andric, Elkins, Woleben-Meade.  
Voting no: none.  The motion carried. 
 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There were no additional public comments. 
 
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 7:41 p.m., Mr. Elkins moved to adjourn the meeting.  The motion was seconded by Ms. 
Woleben-Meade.  Voting yes:  Chairman Bradford and Commissioners Andric, Elkins, 
Woleben-Meade.  Voting no: none.  The motion carried. 
 
 
 



 
 

1200 Wilmette Avenue 
Wilmette, IL  60091 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (847) 853-7550 
DEPARTMENT Fax (847) 853-7701 
 TDD (847) 853-7634 

August 2, 2017 
 
To:  Chairman Bradford and the Appearance Review Commission 
 
From:   Lucas Sivertsen, AICP 
  Business Development Coordinator 
 
Re:  Consent Agenda for August 7, 2017 
 
Attached are three conforming proposals.  The Commission should determine whether these 
proposals meet the Standards of Review for an Appearance Review Certificate.  If you would like 
to remove an item from the Consent Agenda, please bring it to my attention on Monday, August 
7, 2017 and I will notify the petitioner to be present at the meeting to discuss the proposal. 
 
2017-AR-19 Heart Certified Auto Care 1201 Green Bay Road 
 
The petitioner wishes install two replacement wall signs. 
 

Sign Ordinance Proposed Sign  

A business use may display one primary 
sign per street frontage. 

A wall sign is proposed for each of the Green 
Bay Road and Greenwood Avenue frontages. 

Wall signs are allowed up to 30% wall 
coverage. 

The proposed wall signs have the following 
coverage: 

Green Bay Road – 24.2% 

Greenwood Avenue – 18.3% 

The maximum amount of information 
displayed on a sign is seven items of 
information. 

The proposed wall signs each have two items of 
information. 

 
The petitioner wishes to install two replacement wall signs to identify their new business name.  Each 
sign will be the same size.  They will be fabricated from PVC and pin mounted to the wall. 
 
Applicable Sections of the Wilmette Zoning Ordinance: 
16-10.J states the regulations for wall signs 
 
 



2017-AR-21 Domino’s 350 Ridge Road 
 
The petitioner wishes to install a new panel on an existing multi-tenant directory sign. 
 

Sign Ordinance Proposed Sign  

Multi-tenant directory ground signs are 
permitted up to 16 square feet in size. 

The proposed multi-tenant directory is existing 
and is not proposed to be changed in size. 

 
The multi-tenant directory sign is existing.  A tenant in the shopping center would like to add their 
name to the directory sign.  Because they are proposing to add their logo in addition to their business 
name, staff thought it should be reviewed by the commission. 
 
Applicable Sections of the Wilmette Zoning Ordinance: 
16-10.C states the regulations for directory signs 
 
 
2017-AR-22 Share Wilmette 1222 Washington Court 
 
The petitioner wishes to add their business name and logo to the existing awning. 
 

Sign Ordinance Proposed Sign  

Businesses may display one awning sign per 
street frontage. 

Businesses without street frontage are allowed 
to install a sign at the entrance intended for the 
general public. 

Awning signs may cover up to 20% of the 
awning. 

The proposed awning sign covers 2.2% of the 
awning. 

 
The business proposes installing a new awning canvas to replace the sign of the previous second 
floor tenant.  The lettering on the awning would be white to match the other awning signs. 
 
Applicable Sections of the Wilmette Zoning Ordinance: 
16-10.B states the regulations for awning signs 
 



PVC Dimensional  Letters • Duxler Tires • Wilmette, IL

Client Name:
Duxler Tires

Location:
1201 Green Bay Rd
Wilmette, IL 60091

Start Date:  00/00/0000

Last Revision:  00/00/0000

Job#:  00000

Drawing#:  00000av1s1/e1

Page:  1 of 2

APPROVAL:  I have reviewed and approved the sign details on this drawing for fabrication and installation.

CLIENT APPROVAL

LANDLORD APPROVAL

Project Manager:
Seung Park

Sales Rep:
Andrew Oh

Designer:
Peter Boateng

COPYRIGHT 2017, BY  •ALL DESIGNS PRESENTED ARE THE SOLE PROPERTY OF , AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN PART OR WHOLE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM .TFA Signs TFA Signs TFA Signs

Lisc #:5500 N. Kedzie Ave Chicago, IL 60625
773-267-6007  |  sales@tfasigns.com

1/2in

PVC

Facade

3/4in 3/4in

Graphics digitally printed

Pantone P179-3C

Pantone P179-39C

Pantone P48-8C

Pantone Process Black

PVC painted to match
Drivit Stucco paint color 
#133 Driftwood

Scope of Work:
- Manufacture and Install

89.147"

43
.1

3"

3/16” threaded pin
mounts

onto pinmounted PVC board



PVC Dimensional  Letters • Duxler Tires • Wilmette, IL

Client Name:
Duxler Tires

Location:
1201 Green Bay Rd
Wilmette, IL 60091

Start Date:  00/00/0000

Last Revision:  00/00/0000

Job#:  00000

Drawing#:  00000av1s1/e1

Page:  1 of 2

APPROVAL:  I have reviewed and approved the sign details on this drawing for fabrication and installation.

CLIENT APPROVAL

LANDLORD APPROVAL

Project Manager:
Seung Park

Sales Rep:
Andrew Oh

Designer:
Peter Boateng

COPYRIGHT 2017, BY  •ALL DESIGNS PRESENTED ARE THE SOLE PROPERTY OF , AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN PART OR WHOLE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM .TFA Signs TFA Signs TFA Signs

Lisc #:5500 N. Kedzie Ave Chicago, IL 60625
773-267-6007  |  sales@tfasigns.com

288"

H
ei

gh
t a

bo
ve

 g
ra

de
 -

 1
2f

t

416"







Report to the Appearance Review Commission 
from the  

Department of Community Development 
 

Case Number: 2017-AR-17 

 
Property: 911 Ridge Road 
 

Zoning District: NR, Neighborhood Retail 
 

Petitioner: Treasure Island 
 

Request: The petitioner requests an Appearance Review Certificate to 
resurface the parking lot, install landscaping and repair a stone pier. 

 

Applicable Provisions of 20-16, Sign Regulations 
Ordinances: 20-5.7, Appearance Review Certificate 
 

Meeting Date:    August 7, 2017 
 
Date of Application: June 28, 2017 
 
Notice: Certificate of Posting dated, July 14, 2017 

 
Report Prepared By: Lucas Sivertsen, AICP 
 Business Development Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Case 2017-AR-17 

 911 Ridge Road 

 

2 

Description of the Property 

The subject property is located on the 900 block of Ridge Road in the NR, Neighborhood Retail District.  
Surrounding uses include adaptive reuse senior housing to the north, St. Joe’s school to the east, commercial 
office and retail to the south, and single-family housing an auto body repair shop to the west. 
 
Description of Request 

The petitioner requests an Appearance Review Certificate to resurface the parking lot, install landscaping 
and repair a stone pier. 
 
The petitioner submitted an application to repave their parking lot.  The Village code requires perimeter 
parking lot screening to be brought up to code when more when repaving a parking.  The petitioner is 
proposing additional landscaping at the entrance of the parking lot to meet this requirement.  The 
proposed landscaping is acceptable to staff, but requires an Appearance Review Certificate before a 
permit can be issued to repave the parking lot. 
 
In addition, the petitioner needs to repair a stone pier above the storefront.  The proposal includes the 
removal of approximately 10 feet off the top of the pier with the installation of a new concrete and metal 
cap. 
 
Action Required 

The Appearance Review Commission may grant an Appearance Review Certificate provided they 
determine the proposal meets the following standards of review. 
 
Appearance Review Certificate Standards of Review 

 
1. All sides of a structure receive design consideration. 
 
2. If the side or rear of the structure faces a street, a residential use, or a property located in a 

residential zoning district, the exterior materials used on the side or rear are comparable in 
character and quality to the exterior materials used on the facade of the structure. 

 
3. Materials used in the construction and design of the structure are of durable quality. 
 
4. Mechanical equipment is located or screened so as not to be visible from surrounding streets 

and properties.  
 
5. The scale and placement of the structure on the site is appropriate to the proportion of the site 

covered by the structure and the location of the structure in relation to its lot lines. 
 
6. Building design and placement must take into consideration natural grade conditions, existing 

vegetation, and other natural features. 
 
7. Excessive similarity or dissimilarity in design in relation to surrounding or adjoining 

structures is discouraged, including but not limited to building height, exterior materials, 
building mass, roof line, and architectural features. 



Case 2017-AR-17 

 911 Ridge Road 

 

3 

 
8. Design takes into consideration the relationship to the street and the pedestrian environment. 
 
9. Parking, storage, and refuse areas are located and screened so as not to negatively affect 

neighboring properties. 
 
10. Landscape is designed to maintain existing mature trees and shrubs to the maximum extent 

possible. 
 
11. Landscape provides an aesthetically pleasing design and, where applicable, provides for the 

screening of parking, storage, refuse, and utility areas from the street and adjacent residential 
properties. 

 
12. Selected plant materials shall be suitable to Wilmette’s climate and to their location on the 

site. The use of invasive species is prohibited. Invasive species shall be those included in the 
“Chicago Botanic Garden” list of “Invasive Plants in the Chicago Region.” 

 
13. Parking areas are designed to achieve efficient traffic flow and minimize dangerous traffic 

movements. 
 
14. Signs are of the appropriate design, color and placement to the structure, site and adjoining 

properties, in terms of materials, height, setback from the street, and proportion. 
 
15. Accessory structures, exterior lighting and fences, complement the overall structure and site 

design, in terms of materials, size, and architectural character. 
 
16. For new two-unit dwellings, review is limited to whether or not the proposed structure 

maintains the external appearance of a single-family dwelling. 
 
Case File Documents 

Correspondence 
 
1.1 None 
 

Location Maps and Plans 
 
2.1 Plat of Survey 
2.2 Landscape Plan 
2.3 Pier Repair Plan 

 
 





X

X
X

X







































SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

6-INCH PLANTER CURB
















6"
1'-

6"
6"





SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

STONE PLANTER - SIDE
FILENAME
















2'-
0"

3'-
6"

6'-0"

2"

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

DA
TE

N
O

.

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:

us
ed

 in
 w

ho
le

 o
r 

pa
rt

 w
it

ho
ut

 o
ur

 w
ri

tt
en

 c
on

se
nt

.
Th

is
 p

la
n 

is
 a

n 
in

st
ru

m
en

t 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 is
 t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

of
 C

ha
le

t;
 it

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e

Sheet No.

Drawn By:

Date:

W
ilm

et
te

, 
Ill

in
oi

s 
 6

00
91

31
32

 L
ak

e 
Av

en
ue

(8
47

) 
68

8-
05

67
 (

fa
x)

(8
47

) 
68

8-
05

61
 (

ph
)

Client #:

Aprvd By:

NORTH

0 241684

SCALE:

Sheet #

LA
N

DS
CA

PE

TR
EA

SU
RE

 IS
LA

N
D

71
1 

RI
DG

E 
RO

AD
D

W
IL

M
ET

TE
, 

IL
 6

00
91

2017-4-21 107344

IW/ERB SK

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

PLANTING/SITE PLAN1

2 3 SCALE: NTS

6'  BACKLESS  BENCH4





 
 

1200 WILMETTE AVENUE  
WILMETTE, ILLINOIS 60091-0040 

 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (847) 853-7550 
DEPARTMENT FAX (847) 853-7701 

TDD (847) 853-7634 
EMAIL comdev@wilmette.com 

 

 
August 3, 2017 

 
To: Chairman Bradford and the Appearance Review Commission 
 
From: Lucas Sivertsen, Business Development Coordinator 
 
Subject: 1135 Wilmette Avenue, Gates Manor, Preliminary Review 
 
 
Gates Manor has requested a preliminary review for the replacement of their existing 
vestibule.  This is in addition to the remodeling project reviewed by the Commission in 
2015 which was recently completed.  That project included exterior wall repair, window 
replacement and extensive interior remodeling.   
 
The applicant would also like to replace to replace the fence located on the Village 
owned property to the south where Depot Nuevo and the Burmiester Parking lot are 
located.  Since the Village was already planning to replace the fence themselves, 
Village administration has approved Gates Manor’s request to replace the fence 
according to their design.  The applicant will be at the August 7, 2017 meeting to 
present their requests. 



Gates Manor Entry
1135 Wilmette Ave
Appearance Review 
17_0725

Existing Conditions 

Existing Exterior View

Existing Interior View

Existing Fence



Gates Manor Entry
1135 Wilmette Ave
Appearance Review 
17_0725

Existing Conditions 



Gates Manor Entry
1135 Wilmette Ave
Appearance Review 
17_0725

Proposed Entry and Fence

12’ Canopy Height - 4’ Overhang
8’ Tall Double Doors
Aluminum Storefront - Color To Match New Windows
High Performance Painted Steel Canopy Perimeter to Match Storefront
Veneer Wood Composite Panel Underside of Canopy
Single-Ply Membrane Roofi ng
Aluminum Roof Flashing Into Existing Brick to Match Painted Steel Color 
Scuppers On Both Sides To Landscape Rock Below With Drain To Daylight Into Adjacent Green Space

Diffuser Inside Vestibule Reinstalled In New Soffi t
Walk Off Carpet Inside Vestibule And In Center Of Lobby
Porcelain Tile At Perimeter Of Lobby - Florim Stratos Cenere6’ Tall Horizontal Cedar Fence with Black Aluminum Posts



Gates Manor Entry
1135 Wilmette Ave
Appearance Review 
17_0725

Proposed Entry



Gates Manor Entry
1135 Wilmette Ave
Appearance Review
17_0725

Existing Conditions - 
Wood Fence to Be Replaced Shown in Red 

REPLACE SUNKEN/DISPLACED CONCRETE
WALK ADJACENT TO EXTERIOR EXIT FROM
EAST STAIRWELL.

REPLACE STEEL HANDRAILS AND
GUARDRAILS AT EXTERIOR STAIRWAY



Report to the Appearance Review Commission 
from the  

Department of Community Development 
 

Case Number: 2016-AR-18 

 
Property: 601 Green Bay Road 
 

Zoning District: VC, Village Center 
 

Petitioner: Mona Lisa Stone 
 

Request: The petitioner requests an Appearance Review Certificate to address 
conditions of approval and for amendments to the original 
Certificate. 

 

Applicable Provisions of 20-16, Sign Regulations 
Ordinances: 20-5.7, Appearance Review Certificate 
 

Meeting Date:    June 6, 2016 
     July 11, 2016 
     September 26, 2016 
     August 7, 2017 
 
Date of Application: May 2, 2016 
 
Notices: Legal Notice published Wilmette Beacon on May 19, 2016 

Certificate of Posting dated, July 21, 2017 
Affidavit of Personal Notice dated, May 6, 2016 

 
Report Prepared By: Lucas Sivertsen, AICP 
 Business Development Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Case 2016-AR-18 

 601 Green Bay Road 

 

2 

Description of the Property 

The subject property is located on the northwest corner of Green Bay Road and Wilmette Avenue in the 
Village Center Zoning District.  Surrounding uses include a commercial retail use to the north, Union Pacific 
Railroad to the east across Green Bay Road, a commercial retail use to the south across Wilmette Avenue 
and the Wilmette Library to the west across an alley. 
 
Description of Request 

The petitioner requests an Appearance Review Certificate to address conditions of approval and for 
amendments to the original certificate. 
 
The remaining conditions not yet addressed include the trash enclosure, steel trim at edge of tile at corner 
of building, and drip edge underneath cornice.  In addition, the south elevation was parged since the 
previous review before the Commission.  This was not previously discussed and requires an Appearance 
Review Certificate. 
 
Action Required 

The Appearance Review Commission may grant an Appearance Review Certificate provided they 
determine the proposal meets the following standards of review. 
 
Appearance Review Certificate Standards of Review 

 
1. All sides of a structure receive design consideration. 
 
2. If the side or rear of the structure faces a street, a residential use, or a property located in a 

residential zoning district, the exterior materials used on the side or rear are comparable in 
character and quality to the exterior materials used on the facade of the structure. 

 
3. Materials used in the construction and design of the structure are of durable quality. 
 
4. Mechanical equipment is located or screened so as not to be visible from surrounding streets 

and properties.  
 
5. The scale and placement of the structure on the site is appropriate to the proportion of the site 

covered by the structure and the location of the structure in relation to its lot lines. 
 
6. Building design and placement must take into consideration natural grade conditions, existing 

vegetation, and other natural features. 
 
7. Excessive similarity or dissimilarity in design in relation to surrounding or adjoining 

structures is discouraged, including but not limited to building height, exterior materials, 
building mass, roof line, and architectural features. 

 
8. Design takes into consideration the relationship to the street and the pedestrian environment. 
 



Case 2016-AR-18 

 601 Green Bay Road 

 

3 

9. Parking, storage, and refuse areas are located and screened so as not to negatively affect 
neighboring properties. 

 
10. Landscape is designed to maintain existing mature trees and shrubs to the maximum extent 

possible. 
 
11. Landscape provides an aesthetically pleasing design and, where applicable, provides for the 

screening of parking, storage, refuse, and utility areas from the street and adjacent residential 
properties. 

 
12. Selected plant materials shall be suitable to Wilmette’s climate and to their location on the 

site. The use of invasive species is prohibited. Invasive species shall be those included in the 
“Chicago Botanic Garden” list of “Invasive Plants in the Chicago Region.” 

 
13. Parking areas are designed to achieve efficient traffic flow and minimize dangerous traffic 

movements. 
 
14. Signs are of the appropriate design, color and placement to the structure, site and adjoining 

properties, in terms of materials, height, setback from the street, and proportion. 
 
15. Accessory structures, exterior lighting and fences, complement the overall structure and site 

design, in terms of materials, size, and architectural character. 
 
16. For new two-unit dwellings, review is limited to whether or not the proposed structure 

maintains the external appearance of a single-family dwelling. 
 
Case File Documents 

Correspondence 
 
1.1 Email dated, July 11, 2017 from Mr. Lajeune 
 

Location Maps and Plans 
 
2.1 September 26, 2016 Approved Plans 
2.2 July 11, 2016 Approved Plans 

 
Case Minutes 

 
June 6, 2016 601 Green Bay Road 

Mona Lisa Stone & Tile Appearance Review Certificate and Sign Variation 

 
Mr. Sivertsen called Case 2016-AR-18, 601 Green Bay Road, Mona Lisa Stone & Tile for an 
Appearance Review Certificate to refurbish the façade, a sign variation to display more than 
one window sign per frontage, a 5.25 square foot sign area variation to display a projecting sign 
and a sign variation to display signs painted directly to an exterior wall. 
 



Case 2016-AR-18 

 601 Green Bay Road 

 

4 

Mr. Chad Boomgaarden said he was representing the applicant as their architect.  When the 
owner purchase the building he contacted the Wilmette Historical Museum to obtain photos of 
the original building.  It is their intent to refurbish the exterior to bring it back to more of what 
it looked like historically. 
 
Mr. Joseph Lajeune said he is the owner of the building.  As an interior designer he hates to see 
old building’s torn down.  It’s his hope, if financially feasible, to remove the wood cladding on 
the exterior of the first floor and expose the original cast iron columns.  He said the original 
building had a full window glazing with wooden trim.  He wants to install a new full glazing 
with black metal trim and a wooden door. 
 
Mr. Bradford said it’s difficult to tell what is happening ahead of the window.  The plans show 
a cast iron column on either side of the doorway, but are those existing. 
 
Mr. Boomgaarden said he can’t say for sure because they haven’t removed the cladding, but 
from the interior it appears the cast iron columns are intact.  In looking at the historical photos 
it appears there was something over the doorway other than just running bond brick.  They are 
hoping the brick and some of the structural elements are still there. 
 
Mr. Sheridan asked once they remove the cladding, and assuming they find the columns and 
capital are they going to keep them and if not in good condition will they replace them. 
 
Mr. Boomgaarden said if they are there they will be kept and if they are damaged it’s their 
intent to replace where possible.  He can see the capitals from the interior. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said it’s possible the capitals were damaged when they installed the mansard roof. 
 
Mr. Bradford said he would encourage a horizontal expression in the form of a lintel, or other 
element other than just running bond brick.  That would hold true for the door and window to 
the north of the main storefront. 
 
Mr. Elkins said he thought this proposal was a big improvement over what was existing.  His 
main issue with the proposal is the signage, including the repetitive wording the windows and 
painted sign on the side of the building. 
 
Mr. Bradford asked about the windows on the east elevation that were broken up into three 
panels from top to bottom.  He wanted to know if the top two panels were transom glass. 
Mr. Lajeune said all three panels would be vision glass and would not have any tint or film. 
 
Mr. Phillips asked for the though behind the custom painted areas on the west and south sides 
of the building.  To him they are just signs. 
 
Mr. Lejeune thought they could act as mural like paintings, although, there was no specific 
artwork in mind. 
 
Mr. Elkins said there wouldn’t be much visibility for the painted area on the west side of the 
building. 



Case 2016-AR-18 

 601 Green Bay Road 

 

5 

 
Mr. Sheridan said in his opinion the custom painted areas as proposed are too large.  He would 
suggest proposing something that has graphics, but not something that is specifically 
advertising a business or product. 
 
Mr. Bradford asked what size of a conforming blade sign would be. 
 
Mr. Sivertsen said a 6 square foot sign would be conforming. 
 
Mr. Bradford said he thinks the proposed sign is too large, but that a 2x3 foot sign is probably 
too small for this intersection. 
 
Mr. Phillips thought the projecting sign would be more visible if it were facing Green Bay 
Road rather than at a 45 degree angle. 
 
Mr. Collyer said he liked the white wash sign on the south elevation, but thought the size was 
maybe too big.  He liked their proposal to refurbish the façade. 
 
Mr. Miller asked about the window surround on the south elevation.  They seemed very large 
and not necessarily in keeping with the rest of the proposed work. 
 
Mr. Boomgaarden said the existing window openings on that side of the building are pretty 
rough.  It is difficult to say until they remove the cladding, but he suspects there’s a very rough 
opening. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said he thought the windows were probably just wood jams with glazing. 
 
Mr. Boomgaarden said they would match the existing profile of the window and add some 
rolled steel with a black finish. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said there is existing cabling running behind the fake mansard roof.  They will 
need to determine how they will hide the cabling once the roof is removed.  The guardrail 
surrounding the stairs to the basement will need to be replaced.  They will need to present their 
proposal for replacing the railing.  They will also need to provide a trash enclosure for their 
dumpster and screen the a/c condenser.  He asked if the exhaust pipes on the rear of the 
building will stay or be removed. 
 
Mr. Boomgaarden said they will remain, but their purpose will change.  He said they might 
match the finish color of the other metal items on the building. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said they shouldn’t sandblast the brick, but definitely clean it.  There are other 
methods that won’t remove the outer barrier of the brick.  He thinks the proposal is a great 
solution to refurbish the building. 
 
Mr. Phillips said they are proposing too many signs in general. 
 



Case 2016-AR-18 

 601 Green Bay Road 

 

6 

Mr. Lajeune said they have another option where they remove the white wash sign on the south 
elevation and replace it with another reverse-lit sign similar to the east elevation. 
 
Mr. Elkins said he didn’t necessarily have a problem with the white wash sign, but thought it 
was too big.  Regarding the window signs, they could hang a sign in the window that was at 
least 12 inches from the face of the window. 
 
Mr. Phillips said he thought the wall sign along Green Bay should stay within the edges of the 
window openings. 
 
Mr. Collyer said he likes the white wash sign on the south side of the building.  It adds some 
character to the building and seems to be in keeping with the age of the building. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said he is hearing the commission is in support of the white wash sign, but just 
not the additional mural type painted signs on the rear and side of the building. 
 
Mr. Boomgaarden said he agrees with the commission’s comments on the projecting sign.  He 
thinks they will revise the proposal so that it is perpendicular to Green Bay rather than at an 
angle. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said there are enough items outstanding that they will need to continue part of the 
case, but that they can get them started on the façade work. 
 
Mr. Collyer said they would be able to fit the sign within the window openings if they removed 
the letters, “inc.” from the sign. 
 
Mr. Elkins said alternatively they could shrink the letters from 15.5 inches to 14 inches and 
have it fit within the window openings. 
 
Mr. Sheridan asked the applicant if they were sure the projecting sign was exactly how they 
wanted it.  If they are still unsure what the graphics will look like or how it will be illuminated 
they should hold off until those items are decided. 
 
Mr. Boomgaarden said they were still unsure how they will illuminate the sign. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said they will continue that item to the next meeting. 
Mr. Bradford moved to approve a partial Appearance Review Certificate for Case 2016-AR-18, 
601 Green Bay Road for the east and south elevations to remove the existing cladding, cleaning 
the existing brick, restoration of the existing cast iron columns, if the cast iron beam above the 
columns does not exist that it will be replaced in-kind, window openings will have a head 
detail, that the proposed aluminum storefront will have a black finish, conceptual approval of 
black canvas awning with dimensions to be submitted, a back-lit wall sign with lettering 14 
inches in height, and that the storefront door will be wooden with ebony finish.  The motion 
was seconded by Mr. Elkins.  Voting yes:  Chairman Sheridan, and Commissioners Bradford, 
Collyer, Elkins, Miller, Phillips.  Voting no: none.  The motion carried. 
 



Case 2016-AR-18 

 601 Green Bay Road 

 

7 

Mr. Elkins moved to continue Case 2016-AR-18, 601 Green Bay Road, where the applicant 
will return to address the following items: removal of the cable along the west and south 
elevations, the guardrail around the stairwell on the west elevation, dumpster enclosure, 
exterior lighting with cut-sheets and photometric plan, exhaust ducts, and the requested sign 
variations.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Phillips.  Voting yes:  Chairman Sheridan, and 
Commissioners Bradford, Collyer, Elkins, Miller, Phillips.  Voting no: none.  The motion 

carried. 

 

July 11, 2016 601 Green Bay Road 

Mona Lisa Stone & Tile Appearance Review Certificate and Sign Variation 

 
Mr. Sivertsen called Case 2016-AR-18, 601 Green Bay Road, Mona Lisa Stone & Tile for an 
Appearance Review Certificate for further approval of their Appearance Review Certificate and 
sign variation. 
 
Mr. Joseph Lajeune said they removed the exterior wooden cladding and found a few surprises.  
The original window above the doorway leading to the second floor was intact.  They are 
proposing to leave it as is.  There was some question about the steel columns at the last 
meeting.  They were found to be in good condition and they are proposing to leave them as is.  
The engaged pilasters and capitals are gone.  They will brick-in that portion. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said the cornice does not wrap around to the side of the building.  He noted that 
the drawing should reflect that it does not wrap around or extend past the east elevation. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said he spoke with his neighbor and they agreed that it would be okay for him to 
place his dumpster next to their dumpsters.  The rear of the building inside the new fence could 
then be used as a patio for both buildings.  The stairs leading to the basement would be 
enclosed, but he asked if the fence needed to go all the way to the other buildings since the 
dumpster or a/c condenser wouldn’t be located back there anymore.  He said the condenser was 
relocated to the roof. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said the condenser would need to be screened if it was moved to the roof.  They 
could screen the unit with the existing parapet walls, or if they weren’t tall enough to screen the 
units then they could install a fence or some type of screen around the unit.  He thinks the fence 
along back of the building is a good solution. 
 
Mr. Elkins said the projecting sign was labeled “to be determined”.  He wanted to know if the 
commission was being asked to vote on the sign. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said the location and the size of the sign was determined, but not what the sign 
would look like or say. 
 
Ms. Woleben-Meade said it was difficult to vote on the sign without a complete proposal. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said he thought the commission is okay with the location of the sign so that his 
electrician can run the wire, but since he hasn’t yet determined what the sign will look like it 
may be premature to vote on the entire sign. 



Case 2016-AR-18 

 601 Green Bay Road 

 

8 

 
Mr. Elkins said he liked to idea of them keeping the original window above the entrance to the 
second floor, but is unsure of how the entrance and window relate to what is shown in the 
drawings. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said the drawing SKA-03 needed to be updated to accurately reflect what is 
proposed. 
 
Mr. Bradford asked what they intended to do with the existing door to remain. 
 
Mr. Sheridan asked if they would be removing the door and replacing it with a glazed door. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said it was his intent to keep the door. 
 
Mr. Bradford said Mr. Lajeune and his architect should think more about the detail of that 
doorway.  He thinks the remaining items are the sign variations, stairwell enclosure in the back, 
the condensing unit, and the entrance to the second floor space. 
 
Ms. Woleben-Meade moved to continue Case 2016-AR-18 to the August 1, 2016 meeting.  The 
motion was seconded by Mr. Bradford.  Voting yes:  Chairman Sheridan, and Commissioners 
Bradford, Collyer, Elkins, Miller, Woleben-Meade.  Voting no: none.  The motion carried. 

 

 

September 26, 2016 601 Green Bay Road 

Mona Lisa Stone & Tile Appearance Review Certificate 

 
Mr. Adler called Case 2016-AR-18, 601 Green Bay Road, Mona Lisa Stone & Tile, requesting 
an Appearance Review Certificate to address conditions of the previous approval. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said he was seeking approval so he could finish the façade before they opened for 
business.  Since the original approval which allowed them to expose the brick they discovered 
some of the brick was painted.  There was an attempt to power wash the brick to try and 
remove the paint, but it was unsuccessful.  They propose painting the cast iron columns black 
with gold trim around the capital.  The end brick columns would be covered in black glass 
mosaic tiles.  Underneath the storefront windows they will install granite slabs.  The brick on 
the south side of the building would remain for now until they can come up with a holistic plan 
for that side.   
 
Mr. Sheridan asked Mr. Lajeune how he would install the mosaic tile on the brick. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said they will use a thin-set with an additive latex that helps bond with the brick.  
No backer board will be necessary.  The detail on the capitals will be painted gold.  The 
residential access door will be painted black. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said they would also like to amend the previous approval and install a guardrail at 
a height of 42 inches on the west side of the building. 
 



Case 2016-AR-18 

 601 Green Bay Road 

 

9 

Mr. Bradford asked where the dumpster would be located. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said he would like to move it to where the bike shop’s dumpster is located. 
 
Mr. Adler said the Village would need authorization from the bike shop for that change. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said if they are going to come back for the signage as stated in the request, they 
could come back for the trash enclosure approval as well. 
 
Mr. Bradford said he is fine with the type of tile proposed, but has a concern how the tile will 
be left exposed on each edge where the brick returns. 
 
Mr. Collyer shared his concern as well for how the tile will be left exposed at the edge of the 
brick where it turns onto Wilmette Avenue. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said they would come up with an edge detail. 
 
Mr. Elkins said he had a concern for how the tile would meet the metal cornice.  He asked if the 
tile would be projecting out further than the cornice or if it would be set back. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said the tile would be die into the bottom of the cornice.  It wouldn’t be out in 
front of the cornice. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said it would be a good idea to install a drip edge below the cornice to help shed 
the water away from the face of the building. 
 
Ms. Woleben-Meade asked what color the wood paneling would be at the entrance to the 
second floor. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said it would be black to match the window frames. 
 
Mr. Bradford said he thinks there should be some sort of protection at the brick edge of 
Wilmette and Green Bay whether it’s an angle or steel plate that projects out enough to protect 
the tile. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said there is a PVC material they used for the window trim around the windows on 
the south side of the building.  He suggested using that instead of a steel edge. 
 
Mr. Bradford thought the PVC wouldn’t hold up as much as steel. 
 
Mr. Sheridan said the PVC would need to be thicker than the piece of steel would be.  He still 
has a concern with tiling the brick cornice on the annex portion.  He thinks it will become a 
maintenance issue. 
 
Mr. Lajeune said it will still be less of a maintenance issue than if he were to paint the brick. 
 
Mr. Miller said his first thought was that he was unconvinced the tile would work.  It reminded 



Case 2016-AR-18 

 601 Green Bay Road 

 

10 

him of kitchen backsplash tile.  After reviewing it more he thinks he is okay with the size of the 
tile given the circumstance. 
 
Mr. Bradford moved to grant an amendment to the Appearance Review Certificate for the east 
side façade only to allow the installation of tile over existing brick and the installation of 
granite panel underneath the existing windows, with the conditions that 1) a steel trim be 
provided for protection of the tile at the corner of Wilmette and Green Bay, and 2) that a drip 
edge be installed underneath the cornice.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Woleben-Meade.  
Voting yes:  Chairman Sheridan, and Commissioners Bradford, Collyer, Elkins, Miller, 
Phillips, Woleben-Meade.  Voting no: none.  The motion carried. 

 
Mr. Sheridan said Mr. Lajeune said he would come back with information on the trash 
enclosure and signage. 
 
Mr. Lajeune asked if he could open for business while he is working on finishing the tile as 
approved. 
 
Mr. Adler said his main concern was the approval of the design and materials for the façade 
which was just approve by the Commission.  He clarified that the window signage was not part 
of the Commission’s approval.  That would be part of his overall sign proposal once it was 
completed. 
 



1

Sivertsen, Lucas

From: Joseph Lajeune <Jlajeune@monalisastone.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2017 4:41 PM
To: Sivertsen, Lucas
Subject: RE: ARC Case

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Due By: Thursday, July 20, 2017 4:00 PM
Flag Status: Completed

Lucas – 
Regarding the remaining items: 

 The dumpster will remain in its current location behind the screen. Once the building next door is finished and 
the bike shop has their dumpsters situated, we’ll consider the option of consolidating our dumpsters behind the 
Bike shop to create a sitting patio 

 I will have a screen installed for the AC unit  

 I will have a railing around below grade stairs 

 I purchased the steel trim for the edge of the building but decided not to install it because it would be yet 
another element to maintain and it did not add value to the building nor is it necessary 

 Similar to the steel trim, once the glass was installed on the face of the building, the drip edge was not necessary 
and was not added 

As for the South elevation of the building, pending the mural proposal, which I am still researching, adding the skim coat 
was the best fastest way to clean up the building. We’ve received great reviews from residents and neighbor merchants 
and hope to present a plan for consideration in the future. 
 
We would very much like to close these open items and would appear at your next meeting, if needed, to hopefully 
finalize the permit. 
Please advise and many thanks. 
 

JOSEPH LAJEUNE, NCIDQ, ASID, IIDA ‐  Interior Designer 
MONA LISA STONE & TILE, INC. 601 Green Bay Road, WILMETTE, IL 60091‐2505 
office: 847.920.1620 | fax: 847.920.1622 | email: jlajeune@MonaLisaStone.com | website: www.MonaLisaStone.com | hours: M–F: 9am–
5pm CST; Sat: 11am–4pm CST 
THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN ORDINARY AND EXTRAORDINARY!  CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:  This e‐mail and any attachments are confidential and may be protected by legal privilege. If you 

are not the intended recipient, be aware that any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of this e‐mail or any attachment is prohibited. If you have received this e‐mail in error, please notify us immediately by returning it 
to the sender and delete this copy from your system. Thank you for your cooperation. 
 

From: Sivertsen, Lucas [mailto:sivertsenl@wilmette.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, July 5, 2017 12:17 PM 
To: Joseph Lajeune <Jlajeune@monalisastone.com> 
Cc: Desiree Quintero <dquintero@monalisastone.com> 
Subject: RE: ARC Case 
 
Joseph, 
 
Your Appearance Review Certificate request to remodel the exterior of your building at 601 Green Bay Road was 
approved with conditions on Monday, September 26, 2016.  As a reminder, you are operating your business in a building 
that has received only a conditional occupancy permit.  The conditions of which were for you to address the remaining 
items of your Appearance Review Certificate.  The following items need to be addressed: 



COPYRIGHT BOOMGAARDEN ARCHITECTS  2016

SKA-
2015.39

09-07-2016
PROJECT NO.:
DATE:

03SEPTEMBER 26
 A

PPROVAL



COPYRIGHT BOOMGAARDEN ARCHITECTS  2016

SKA-
2015.39

09-07-2016
PROJECT NO.:
DATE:

05SEPTEMBER 26
 A

PPROVAL



COPYRIGHT BOOMGAARDEN ARCHITECTS  2016

SKA-
2015.39

09-07-2016
PROJECT NO.:
DATE:

07

SEPTEMBER 26
 A

PPROVAL



COPYRIGHT BOOMGAARDEN ARCHITECTS  2016

SKA-
2015.39

06-28-2016
PROJECT NO.:
DATE:

03JU
LY

 1
1

Y
111

YYYYYYYY
111111111111111111111

YY
1111111111111111111111

LYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYYYYYY
1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111

Y
111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111

AA
1111

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
11111

A
11111

A
11111

A
11111

A
11111

A
11111

A
11111

A
11111

A
11111

A
11111

A
11111

A
1111111111111111111111111111111

AA
11

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1111111 

APAPAPAP
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
11111111 11

APAPAPAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1111111

AAPAP
1

A
1

AAP
1 

A
1 1

AA
1

AA
111111

AP
1

A
1 

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

A
1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111

AAAAAPAAAAAAAAPAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAPPAPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP
111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111

Y
1

Y
1111

A
11

A
1

APAPAPPPAPAPAPAAAPAPPROVAL

ROROOROOROOROOROOROOROOROORORORORRPRPRPRPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPAPAPAP

OVOVOVOVOVOVOVOVOVOVOVOOROROROROROROOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOVOVOVOOOOVOVOOOV

PRPRPR
PPR
PPR
PPRRORORORRRPPPPRPRPR
PPPPPPROROROROROROOVOVOVOOOV

PPPRRRR
PPR
PPRPR
PPPRPR
PPRRRRRROROROROOROROROROROROROROROROOOORORORORORO

AAPAPAPAPAPAPAPPPPPPPPPR
PPRROROOV

Y
1

APAPAP

JJJJJJTS



COPYRIGHT BOOMGAARDEN ARCHITECTS  2016

SKA-
2015.39

06-28-2016
PROJECT NO.:
DATE:

04
LYLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYY

1111111111111111
Y

1
Y

1
Y

1
Y

1
Y

1
Y

1
Y

1
YYYY

1
Y

1111111
A

11
A

11
A

11
 A

PPROVAL

ROROROROOVOVOVVVOVOVOVOVOVOVOVOVOOROROOVVVOOOVOVV

PRO
PRO
PRO

APAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAAAAAAAAAAAA
1

A
1

AAAAA

ROROROROROROORORORORORORORORORRRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP

V

11
A

11
AA

PROV
ROROROOVOVV
ROOV

PRO
PRRPRPRO
PRORO

PPPPPPPPPPRRRRRRRRROOOOOOROROROROROROROROROROROROROROROOOOOOOOOOOOROROROROROROROROROROROROROROROROROROROROOOOOOOOOOOOROROROROROROROROROOOOOVOVOOOVOVOVOVOVOVOVOVOVOOOVOVOVOVOVOVOVVVVVVVVVV
ROVOVOVOOORORORRRORORORORROROROROROROO

PPPPPPPPPPPPRORORO

11
AAAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPPPPPPP

VVVVVOOOO

1
A

1
A

1
A

11111111
APPPPPPPPPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRRORORO

PRPRPRPRO
PRPRPRROROROROROROROOOOOVOVOVOVOVOVOVA

PRORO
PR
PP

11
A

JJJJJJTS

sivertsenl
Line

sivertsenl
Line



COPYRIGHT BOOMGAARDEN ARCHITECTS  2016

SKA-
2015.39

06-28-2016
PROJECT NO.:
DATE:

05JU
LYLYULLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYYYULULULULULULULYULULYLYLYLYLYLYLYLY

 1
1

YY
11

 A
PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAAAAAAAAAAAA

1
A

1
A

1
A

1
A

1
A

1
A

1111111
Y

11
 A

PAAAAPPROVALAAAAA

RORORORORORORORORORORORORORRPRPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPRPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAAAA
PRPR

A

ROOVA

PRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPRPR

AA

APAP

AAAA

AAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPPPPPPP
11111111

YYY
1

Y
111

Y
1

Y
1

Y
111111111111111111

LY
 1

1 
APPPPPP

111
YYYYYYYYYYYYYY

1

PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP

LYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLY
JJJJJJTS



COPYRIGHT BOOMGAARDEN ARCHITECTS  2016

SKA-
2015.39

06-28-2016
PROJECT NO.:
DATE:

06JU
LYLY

 1
1

UU

111
LY

1
LY

 1
LY

1
LY

1

ULYULYULYULYULYULYLLLULULULLLLLULULULULYYY
111

YYYLYLYLYYYYULULULULUUULU

1111

ULYULYYLY
11

LYL
1

UUUUUULULULULULULULLLLLUUULULULULULULULYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYY
1

ULYY
1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111

YYYYYYYYYY
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
111111111

YYYYYYYYYYY
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
11111111

YYYYYYYYYYYY
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
111111111

YYYYYYYYYYYYY
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
11111111

YYYYYYYYYYYYYY
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
111111111

YYYYYYYYYYYYYYY
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
11111111

YYYYYYYYYYYYYYYY
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
1

Y
111111111

YYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYYYYYYYLLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYYYYYYYLLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYYYYYLLLLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYYYYYLLLLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYYYLLLLLLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYYYLLLLLLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYLLLLLLLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYYYLLLLLLLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYLLLLLLLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYYYLLLLLLLLLLLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYUUUUUULULULULULULULULULULULYULYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYYYUUUUULULULULULULULULULULULYULYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYLYYUUUUUUUULULULULULULULULULULULULLLLLLLLLLLLLUUUUUUULULULULULULULULULULULULLLL
11111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111

 AAAA11 
A

1 
A

1
A

1
A

1
A

1
A

1
A

111
A

111 
A

LLLLLLLLLUUUUUUUUUULULULULULULULULULULULULLLLLLLLLLLLUUUUUUUUULULULULULULULULULULULULLLLLLLLLLLUUUUUUUUUUUULULULULULULULULULULULULLLLLLLLLLUUUU

11111111111
A

JU
LY

 1
1 

AAAAAPP
AAPAAPAPPPPPPP
APPPPPPPP
APPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPROVAL

VAVAVAVA

PPPP
ROV
ROV
ROVOVOVOV
RORORORRRRR

VAVA

PPPPPPPPROVOVOVA
OV
ROV
RRROV
ROVOOOOOOVOVOVOVOVA

OVOVOVOV
ROV
RPPP

AAAAAAAAAAPAPAPAPAPPPPPPPPP
AAPAPAPAPPPP

VAA

AA

JJJJJJTSJUJJJJJJJUJJJJUJUJUJUJUJUJUJUJUJUJUJUUUU



 
1200 WILMETTE AVENUE  

WILMETTE, ILLINOIS 60091-0040 
 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (847) 853-7550 
DEPARTMENT FAX (847) 853-7701 

TDD (847) 853-7634 
EMAIL comdev@wilmette.com 

 

 
Date: August 3, 2017 
 
To: Chairman Bradford and the Appearance Review Commission 
 
From: Lucas Sivertsen, Business Development Coordinator 
 
Subject: Request to Amend Westlake Plaza Local Sign Ordinance 
 
The owners of Westlake Plaza have requested a Zoning Ordinance text amendment to 
permit the display of two multi-tenant directory signs. 
 
Background 
 
A Local Sign Ordinance (LSO) is an agreement between a specific commercial area and 
the Village of Wilmette that establishes specific sign standards for all businesses within 
that area.  Because the sign standards are so specific, individual sign applications that 
follow the Local Sign Ordinance criteria can be reviewed and issued by Village staff 
without needing ARC review. 
 
The current LSO permits the display of two shopping center identification signs, but does 
not permit the display of multi-tenant signs.  The sign ordinance regulating the overall 
Village permits multi-tenant signs up to 16 square feet in area.  That regulation is more 
intended for smaller neighborhood shopping centers with only a handful of tenants. 
 
Discussion 
 
The proposed signage includes two multi-tenant directory signs located in roughly the 
same location as the existing shopping center identification signs.  Each sign would 
display the name of the shopping center and a number of tenants below.  The sign panels 
would consist of opaque material such as aluminum which would be cut-out to allow 
internal illumination to shine through acrylic panels set behind the aluminum. 
 
The sign at the corner of Lake Avenue and Skokie Boulevard is proposed to be 17 feet in 
height and 10 feet in width at its base.  The sign along Lake Avenue is proposed to be 12 



feet in height and 8 feet in width at its base.  For reference, the Village wide sign code 
allows ground signs along Lake Avenue and Skokie Boulevard to reach 15 feet in height. 
 
The Commission should consider an appropriate size for the signs as well as how the 
materials relate to the overall shopping center.  The size will be a function of how many 
tenants are displayed and from what distance the lettering should be readable.  In general, 
a letter height of 1 inch can be read at a distance of 25 feet.  The speed of traffic and 
number of words displayed will affect the readability of a sign.  Other factors to keep in 
mind include: 
 

1. Amount of “white” space surrounding a word/name. 
2. Number of names/panels per sign. 
3. Overall height of sign. 
4. Fonts and colors 

 
If the Commission and applicant can come to a consensus on the design of the signs, 
staff can prepare regulations that reflect those design constraints for review at the next 
meeting.  A codified set of regulations can then be recommended to the Village Board for 
consideration. 
 
Standards of Review 
 
When making a recommendation to the Village Board, the ARC should consider how the 
recommendation aligns with the Standards of Review for Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendments. 
 

1. The extent to which the proposed amendment promotes the public health, safety 
and welfare of the Village. 

2. The relative gain to the public, as compared to the hardship imposed upon the 
applicant. 

3. The consistency of the proposed amendment with the Comprehensive Plan. 
4. The consistency of the proposed amendment with the intent and general 

regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 
5. Whether the proposed amendment corrects an error or omission, adds clarification 

to existing requirements, or reflects a change in policy. 
6. That the proposed amendment will benefit the resident of the Village as a whole, 

and not just the applicant, property owner, neighbors of any property under 
consideration, or other special interest groups, and the extent to which the 
proposed use would be in the public interest and would not serve solely the interest 
of the applicant. 

7. Whether the proposed amendment provides a more workable way to achieve the 
intent and purposes of this Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan, or planned public 
improvements. 

8. The extent to which the proposed amendment creates non-conformities. 
 
 



Attachments: 
 

1. Aerial Map 
2. Applicant Sign Submittal 
3. Landscape Plan 



Map created on July 13, 2017.
© 2017 GIS Consortium and MGP Inc. All Rights Reserved.

0 100 200ft

http://www.gisconsortium.org/
http://www.mgpinc.com/
http://www.gisconsortium.org/
http://www.mgpinc.com/


Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A1.0SITE PLAN
JULY 24, 2017

0 50 10025

NEW MONUMENT SIGN: (1)
SIGN TYPE 1

LAKE STREET

SKO
KIE STREET

BLDG. 3

BLDG. 2

BLDG. 1

NEW MONUMENT SIGN: (1)
SIGN TYPE 2

SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR
PROPOSED NEW PLANTINGS



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A2.0MONUMENT SIGN TYPE 1
JULY 24, 2017

NEW MONUMENT SIGN: (1)
SIGN TYPE 1

0 2 4 80 8 16 32

LAKE STREET

SKO
KIE STREETEXISTING PARKING LOT

REMOVE EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING WALK TO REMAIN

2'-
0"

SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR
PROPOSED NEW PLANTINGS

PROPERTY LINE

PAVERS



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A3.0MONUMENT SIGN TYPE 2
JULY 24, 2017

0 2 4 8

NEW MONUMENT SIGN: (1)
SIGN TYPE 2

LAKE STREET

0 8 16 32

3'
-9

"

SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR
PROPOSED NEW PLANTINGS

PROPERTY LINE

PAVERS



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A4.0KEY PLAN
JULY 24, 2017

NEW MONUMENT SIGN: (1)
SIGN TYPE 2

LAKE STREET

SKO
KIE STREET

NEW MONUMENT SIGN: (1)
SIGN TYPE 1



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A5.0SIGN TYPE 1
JULY 24, 2017



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A5.1SIGN TYPE 1
JULY 24, 2017



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A6.0SIGN TYPE 1
JULY 24, 2017



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A6.1SIGN TYPE 1
JULY 24, 2017



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A7.0SIGN TYPE 2
JULY 24, 2017



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A7.1SIGN TYPE 1
JULY 24, 2017



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A8.0SIGN TYPE 2
JULY 24, 2017



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A8.1SIGN TYPE 2
JULY 24, 2017



Architecture + Planning
343 W Erie Suite #220
Chicago, IL 60654
888.456.5849
ktgy.com

Newport Capital Partners
450 N. LaSalle St. #700
Chicago, IL 60654 #

WESTLAKE PLAZA MONUMENT SIGN
WILMETTE, IL 170344

ZONING APPLICATION A9.0LETTER VISIBILITY SCHEME
JULY 24, 2017

NEW MONUMENT SIGN:
(1) SIGN TYPE 1

LAKE STREET

SKO
KIE STREET

R 200'
(6" LETTERS)

R350'
(8" LETTERS)

R400'
(10" LETTERS)




	08_Consent Agenda.pdf
	08_Consent Plans.pdf
	08_Duxler
	Page 1
	Page 2

	08_Dominos
	08_Share Plans





